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WESTERN ASSET LIQUIDITY FUNDS PLC 

General Information 

The English language financial statements may be translated into other languages and such translations shall contain only the same information as the English 
language financial statements. In the event of any inconsistency or ambiguity in relation to the meaning of any word or phrase in any translation, the English text 
shall prevail and all disputes as to the terms thereof shall be governed by, and construed in accordance with the laws of Ireland. 

Directors of the Company: Joseph Carrier – USA 
 Fionnuala Doris – Ireland (Independent) 
 William Jackson – United Kingdom1 
 Joseph Keane – Ireland (Independent) 
 Joseph LaRocque – USA 
 Elinor Murray – United Kingdom3 

 
Jaspal Sagger – United Kingdom 
Jane Trust – USA 

 

Craig Tyle – USA2 
1 resigned on 17 July 2023. 
2 appointed on 27 July 2023. 
3 appointed on 1 November 2023. 

Company Secretary: Bradwell Limited 
 Ten Earlsfort Terrace, Dublin 2 
 Ireland 

Registered Office: Riverside Two 
 Sir John Rogerson’s Quay 
 Grand Canal Dock, Dublin 2 
 Ireland 

Administrator, Transfer Agent and 
Registrar: 

BNY Mellon Fund Services (Ireland) Designated Activity Company 
One Dockland Central 
Guild Street 
IFSC, Dublin 1 
Ireland 

Manager and Promoter: Franklin Templeton International Services S.à r.l 
8A, rue Albert Borschette, L-1246 Luxembourg 
Grand Duchy of Luxembourg 

Investment Manager: Western Asset Management Company, LLC 
 385 East Colorado Boulevard 
 Pasadena, California 91101 
 USA 

Sub-Investment Manager: Western Asset Management Company Limited 
 10 Exchange Square 
 Primrose Street, London EC2A 2EN 
 United Kingdom 

Depositary The Bank of New York Mellon SA/NV, Dublin Branch 
 Riverside Two 
 Sir John Rogerson’s Quay 
 Grand Canal Dock, Dublin 2 
 Ireland 

Irish Counsel: Arthur Cox LLP 
 Ten Earlsfort Terrace, Dublin 2 
 Ireland 

Independent Auditors: PricewaterhouseCoopers 
 Chartered Accountants and Registered Auditors 
 One Spencer Dock 
 North Wall Quay, Dublin 1 
 Ireland 

Master Distributor: Franklin Distributors, LLC 
 One Franklin Parkway 
 San Mateo, CA 94403 
 USA 

Distributor: Western Asset Management Company Limited 
 10 Exchange Square 
 Primrose Street, London EC2A 2EN 
 United Kingdom 
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WESTERN ASSET LIQUIDITY FUNDS PLC 

General Information – (continued) 

Shareholder Servicing Agent: Western Asset Management Company Limited 
 10 Exchange Square 
 Primrose Street, London EC2A 2EN 
 United Kingdom 

Distributor Status (relevant to United Kingdom (“U.K.”) Shareholders only) 
UK shareholders can identify which share classes of the funds (the “Funds”) of Western Asset Liquidity Funds plc (the “Company”) have been accepted into the 
UK reporting fund regime, by checking the HM Revenue and Customs’ Reporting Fund list at the website http://www.hmrc.gov.uk/collective/cis-centre.htm. This 
list is updated on a monthly basis by the HM Revenue and Customs. 
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WESTERN ASSET LIQUIDITY FUNDS PLC 

Investment Manager’s Report – for the year ended 31 August 2023 

WESTERN ASSET US DOLLAR LIQUIDITY FUND (the “Fund”) 

Global Economic Review 
The global economy faced numerous challenges but was resilient during the reporting period. That said, growth could moderate due to several headwinds. 
According to its July 2023 World Economic Outlook Update, the International Monetary Fund (the “IMF”) projected global gross domestic product (“GDP”) growth 
to decline from 3.5% in 2022 to 3.0% in 2023. According to the IMF, “The global recovery from the COVID-19 pandemic and Russia’s invasion of Ukraine is 
slowing amid widening divergences among economic sectors and regions… While the forecast for 2023 is modestly higher than predicted in the April 2023 World 
Economic Outlook, it remains weak by historical standards. The rise in central bank policy rates to fight inflation continues to weigh on economic activity… 
Inflation is easing in most countries but remains high, with divergences across economies and inflation measures.” The IMF forecasts 2023 GDP to expand 1.8% 
in the US (versus 2.1% growth in 2022), 0.9% in the Eurozone (from 3.5% growth in 2022), 0.4% in the UK (from 4.1% growth in 2022), and 1.4% in Japan 
(from 1.1% growth in 2022). 

Market Review – Fixed Incomei 
The overall global fixed income market declined during the reporting period. In the US, Treasury yields moved sharply higher as inflation remained elevated. 
Against this backdrop, the US Federal Reserve Board (“Fed”) raised the federal funds rate at ten consecutive meetings from March 2022 through May 2023. While 
the Fed paused from raising rates in June 2023, the central bank again hiked rates in July 2023 – pushing it to a 22 year high. US 10-year Treasury yields began 
the reporting period at 3.15% and ended the period at 4.09%. Rising yields also occurred in most developed market countries outside the US. All told, US 
Treasuries posted negative returns. In contrast, lower-rated US corporate bondsii and US dollar-denominated emerging market sovereign debt generated positive 
results. 

Portfolio Review / Outlook: 

Over the 12-month period Western Asset US Dollar Liquidity Fund returned 4.73% (gross) versus 4.35% for the FTSE 1-month US Treasury Bill Index 
benchmark. 

Q. What were the leading contributors to performance during the reporting period? 

A. The Fund’s performance was positively impacted by its short maturity stance and holdings in floating rate securities, which allowed it to respond well to the 
Federal Reserve’s (Fed’s) rate hikes. 

Q. What were the leading detractors from performance during the reporting period? 

A. There were no meaningful detractors from performance during the reporting period. 

Q. Were there any significant changes to the portfolio and how was it positioned at the end of the reporting period? 

A. The Fund continued to maintain a defensive maturity posture into the beginning of 2023, as the Fed indicated that it would continue to raise rates in order to 
combat inflation. However, the Fed did gradually reduce the size of its rate increases over the period, perhaps indicating that its ultimate target rate might be 
growing closer. Towards the end of the period, we modestly extended the average maturity of the portfolio, based on our view the markets had fully priced in the 
likely tightening actions by the Fed over the remainder of 2023. 

Western Asset Management Company, LLC 
September 2023 

These views are not intended to be a forecast of future events, a guarantee of future results or investment advice. Views expressed may differ from those of the 
Investment Manager as a whole. The Investment Manager may from time to time elect to decrease or increase the total annual expenses of any class of shares 
by waiving or increasing the investment management fee payable to it by the Company. The level of such waivers will vary from time to time and vary between 
funds. The utilisation of fee waivers is designed to ensure that the fund’s returns, net of fees, remain competitive compared to benchmarks and similar funds 
available to investors in the marketplace. Portfolio holdings and breakdowns as of 31 August 2023 are subject to change. Please refer to pages 11 and 12 for a list 
and percentage breakdown of Western Asset US Dollar Liquidity Fund holdings. 

Please note that investment in a money market fund is not in the nature of a deposit in a bank account and is neither insured nor guaranteed by the Federal 
Deposit Insurance Corporation or any other government agency in any other country. Although a money market fund seeks to preserve the value of your 
investment at $1.00 per share for non-accumulating shares, it is possible to lose money by investing in such a fund. 

Offshore fund units may not be sold to citizens or residents of any other jurisdiction where it could be unlawful to offer solicit or sell the units. 

i Fixed income – bonds. 
ii Corporate bond – a bond issued by a corporation to raise money 

effectively in order to expand its business. 
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WESTERN ASSET LIQUIDITY FUNDS PLC 

Directors’ Report 

The Directors present their annual report together with the audited financial statements for the financial year ended 31 August 2023 of Western Asset Liquidity 
Funds plc (the “Company”). 

Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities 
The Directors are responsible for preparing the Directors’ report and the financial statements in accordance with Irish law. 

Irish company law requires the Directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year that give a true and fair view of the Company’s assets, liabilities 
and financial position as at the end of the financial year and of the profit or loss of the Company for the financial year. The Directors have prepared the financial 
statements in accordance with the accounting standards generally accepted in Ireland, including Financial Reporting Standard (“FRS”) 102: “The Financial 
Reporting Standard applicable in the United Kingdom and the Republic of Ireland” (“FRS 102”). 

Under Irish company law, the Directors shall not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the Company’s 
assets, liabilities and financial position as at the end of the financial year and the profit or loss of the Company for the financial year. 

In preparing these financial statements, the Directors are required to: 

� select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently; 

� make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; 

� state whether the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with applicable accounting standards and identify the standards in question, 
subject to any material departures from those standards being disclosed and explained in the notes to the financial statements; and 

� prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the Company will continue in business. 

The Directors are responsible for ensuring that adequate accounting records are kept that are sufficient to: 

� correctly record and explain the transactions of the Company; 

� enable, at any time, the assets, liabilities, financial position and profit or loss of the Company to be determined with reasonable accuracy; and 

� enable the Directors to ensure that the financial statements comply with the requirements of the Companies Act 2014, and enable those financial 
statements to be audited. 

To achieve this, the Directors have appointed BNY Mellon Fund Services (Ireland) Designated Activity Company (the “Administrator”) to maintain the accounting 
records located in Ireland and perform additional administrative duties. 

The Directors are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Company. In fulfilment of this responsibility, they have appointed The Bank of New York 
Mellon SA/NV, Dublin Branch (the “Depositary”) to safekeep the Company’s assets in accordance with the constitution of the Company. In addition, the Directors 
are responsible for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities. 

The Directors are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the financial statements of the Company included on the website of Franklin Templeton 
affiliates that distribute the Funds. Legislation in Ireland governing the preparation and dissemination of financial statements may differ from legislation in other 
jurisdictions. 

Principal Activities and Review of the Business 
The Company manages the Fund to achieve the stated objectives of maintaining capital value while seeking to produce a return in line with money market rates. 
The performance review is included in the Investment Manager’s Report on page 4. 

Significant Events 
Details of significant events during the financial year are disclosed in Note 16 to the financial statements. 

Results for the year 
The Statement of Financial Position as at 31 August 2023 is on page 13. The results for the financial year ended 31 August 2023 are set out in the Statement of 
Comprehensive Income on page 14. 

Class D, Class S and Class WA (Distributing) shares declare a dividend of all or substantially all of the net income and realised gains attributable and continue to 
be declared daily and distributed monthly as set out in the Prospectus. 

Class C shares carry no right to any dividend. The net investment income and realised gains attributable to Class C shares shall be retained by such class within 
the Fund. 

Total dividend distributions to holders of Redeemable Participating Shares for the financial years ended 31 August 2023 and 31 August 2022 are disclosed in the 
Statement of Comprehensive Income. 

Risk Management Objectives and Policies 

Market and Geo-Political Risk 
Market risk arises from volatility in the prices of the Fund’s investments, from the risk of volatility in global markets arising from macroeconomic and geopolitical 
circumstances and conditions. Many of the investments held by the Fund, by reason of the locations in which they operate, exposed to the risk of political or 
economic change. In addition, exchange controls, tax or other regulations introduced in any country in which the Fund invests may affect its income and the value 
and marketability of its investments. 
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WESTERN ASSET LIQUIDITY FUNDS PLC 

Directors’ Report – (continued) 

Risk Management Objectives and Policies – (continued) 

Pandemic Risk 
The spread of infectious illnesses or other public health issues and their aftermaths, such as the outbreak of COVID-19, could have a significant adverse impact on 
the Fund’s operations (including the ability to find and execute suitable investments) and therefore, the Fund’s potential returns. The outbreak, as well as the 
restrictive measures implemented to control such outbreaks, could adversely affect the economies of many nations or the entire global economy, the financial 
condition of individual issuers or companies (including those that are held by, or are counterparties or service providers to, the Fund) and capital markets in ways 
that cannot necessarily be foreseen, and such impact could be significant and long term. 

The Board has reviewed and discussed the situation with the Manager and the Investment Manager, including a review of the portfolio, risk management and 
business continuity. The risks associated with a pandemic affect all areas of the Fund’s investments as well as operations. A flexible technology setup (“Work 
from home”) at the Manager and the Investment Manager ensure operational business continuity and continuous analyst coverage. The Board has also received 
updates on its key service providers’ business continuity plans confirming their ability to maintain their operational activities and support to the Fund’s operations. 

Reputational Risk 
Our reputation depends upon the way our business activities are conducted. All employees of the Manager are required to adhere to a Code of Conduct. 

Regulatory Risk 
Regulatory risk is the risk to the reputation and financial health of the Fund of a failure to comply with regulatory requirements and expectations, this includes 
risks in relation to financial crime and fraud. The current environment and the outlook, near term at least, is one of increased regulatory activity with many new 
and changed regulations being issued in many jurisdictions. As the regulatory environment evolves the Board continues to seek input from internal and external 
experts and review the necessary resources, processes and systems required to achieve regulatory compliance. 

Cyber Crime 
Failure or breach of information technology systems of the Company’s service providers may entail risk of financial loss, disruption to operations or damage to the 
reputation of the Company. 

Additional information in relation to certain of the Company’s risk management objectives and policies are included in Note 14 to the financial statements. 

Sustainable Finance Disclosure Regulation 
The Funds are categorised as Article 6 funds under Regulation (EU) 2019/2088 of the European Parliament and of the Council of 27 November 2019 on 
sustainability-related disclosures in the financial services sector. 

The investments in the Funds did not consider the EU criteria for environmentally sustainable economic activities. 

Future Developments 
The Company will continue its policy of investing directly or indirectly in a wide range of high quality US Dollar money market securities and short term debt 
instruments, which comply with the criteria for money market instruments set out in the Central Bank (Supervision and Enforcement) Act 2013 (Section 48(1)) 
(Undertakings for Collective Investment in Transferable Securities) Regulations 2019 (the “Central Bank UCITS Regulations”) in Western Asset US Dollar Liquidity 
Fund with the aim of maintaining capital value while seeking to produce a return to investors in line with money market rates. 

Directors 
The names of the persons who are currently Directors or who served as a Director at any time during the financial year are set out below: 

Joseph Carrier – USA 
Fionnuala Doris – Ireland (Independent) 
William Jackson – United Kingdom1 
Joseph Keane – Ireland (Independent) 
Joseph LaRocque – USA 
Elinor Murray – United Kingdom3 
Jaspal Sagger – United Kingdom 
Jane Trust – USA 
Craig Tyle – USA2 
1 resigned on 17 July 2023. 
2 appointed on 27 July 2023. 
3 appointed on 1 November 2023. 

Directors and their Interests 
The Directors and secretary and their families had no interests in the shares of the Company as at 31 August 2023 or 31 August 2022. No Director had at any time 
during the financial year, a material interest in any contract of significance, subsisting during or at the end of the financial year, in relation to the business of the 
Company. 

Fair Value Directive 
It is the opinion of the Board that the information required by the European Communities (Fair Value Accounting) Regulations 2004 in relation to the use by the 
Company of financial instruments and the financial risk management objectives and policies of the Company and the exposures of the Company to market risk, 
currency risk, interest rate risk, liquidity risk and credit risks is outlined in Note 14 to these financial statements. 

Subsequent Events 
Details of changes subsequent to the Statement of Financial Position date are disclosed in Note 17 to the financial statements. 
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WESTERN ASSET LIQUIDITY FUNDS PLC 

Directors’ Report – (continued) 

Corporate Governance Statement 
The Board has assessed all measures included in the voluntary Corporate Governance Code for Collective Investment Schemes and Management Companies as 
published by Irish Funds in December 2011 (the “Irish Funds Code”). The Board has adopted all corporate governance practices and procedures in the Irish Funds 
Code. 

Director’s Compliance Statement 
It is the policy of the Company to comply with its relevant obligations (as defined in the Companies Act 2014). As required by Section 225(2) of the Companies Act 
2014, the Directors acknowledge that they are responsible for securing the Company’s compliance with the relevant obligations. The Directors have drawn up a 
compliance policy statement as defined in Section 225(3)(a) of the Companies Act 2014, and a compliance policy which refers to the arrangements and structures 
that are in place and which are, in the Directors’ opinion, designed to secure material compliance with the Company’s relevant obligations. In discharging their 
responsibilities under Section 225, the Directors relied upon, among other things, the services provided, advice and/or representations from third parties whom 
the Directors believe have the requisite knowledge and experience in order to secure material compliance with the Company’s relevant obligations. 

Relevant Audit Information 
So far as the Directors are aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the Company’s auditors are unaware and the Directors have taken all the steps 
that ought to have been taken as Directors in order to make themselves aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that the Company’s auditors are 
aware of that information. 

Connected Person Transactions 
Regulation 43(1) of the Central Bank UCITS Regulations states that a “responsible person shall ensure that any transaction between a UCITS and a connected 
person is (a) conducted at arm’s length; and (b) in the best interests of the unit-holders of the UCITS”. 

As required under Regulation 81(4) of the Central Bank UCITS Regulations, the Board is satisfied that (a) there are arrangements in place, evidenced by written 
procedures, to ensure that the obligations that are prescribed by Regulation 43(1) are applied to all transactions with connected persons; and (b) all transactions 
with connected persons that were entered into during the financial year complied with the obligations that are prescribed by Regulation 43(1). 

Independent Auditors 
The independent auditors, PricewaterhouseCoopers, have expressed their willingness to continue in office in accordance with Section 383(2) of the Companies 
Act 2014. 

On behalf of the Board 

Joseph Keane  Fionnuala Doris 

7 December 2023 
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WESTERN ASSET LIQUIDITY FUNDS PLC 

Depositary’s Report for the year ended 31 August 2023 

Report from the Depositary to the Shareholders Dated 7 December 2023 
For the Period from 1 September 2022 to 31 August 2023 (the “Period”) 

The Bank of New York Mellon SA/NV, Dublin Branch (the “Depositary” “us”, “we”, or “our”) has enquired into the conduct of Western Asset Liquidity Funds Plc 
(the “Company”) for the Period, in its capacity as Depositary to the Company. 

This report including the opinion has been prepared for and solely for the shareholders in the Company, in accordance with our role as Depositary to the Company 
and for no other purpose. We do not, in giving this opinion, accept or assume responsibility for any other purpose or to any other person to whom this report is 
shown. 

Responsibilities of the Depositary 
Our duties and responsibilities are outlined in Regulation 34 of the European Communities (Undertakings for Collective Investment in Transferable Securities) 
Regulations 2011 (S.I. No 352 of 2011), as amended (the “Regulations”). 

Our report shall state whether, in our opinion, the Company has been managed in that period in accordance with the provisions of the Company’s constitutional 
documentation and the Regulations. It is the overall responsibility of the Company to comply with these provisions. If the Company has not been so managed, we 
as Depositary must state in what respects it has not been so managed and the steps which we have taken in respect thereof. 

Basis of Depositary Opinion 
The Depositary conducts such reviews as it, in its reasonable opinion, considers necessary in order to comply with its duties and to ensure that, in all material 
respects, the Company has been managed (i) in accordance with the limitations imposed on its investment and borrowing powers by the provisions of its 
constitutional documentation and the appropriate regulations and (ii) otherwise in accordance with the Company’s constitutional documentation and the 
appropriate regulations. 

Opinion 
In our opinion, the Company has been managed during the Period, in all material respects: 

(i) in accordance with the limitations imposed on the investment and borrowing powers of the Company by the constitutional documentation and by the 
Regulations; and 

(ii) otherwise in accordance with the provisions of the constitutional documentation and the Regulations. 

For and on Behalf of The Bank of New York Mellon SA/NV, Dublin Branch 
Riverside Two, Sir John Rogerson’s Quay 
Dublin 2, D02 KV60, Ireland 
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WESTERN ASSET LIQUIDITY FUNDS PLC 

Independent Auditors’ Report to the Members of Western Asset Liquidity Funds plc 

Report on the audit of the financial statements 

Opinion 
In our opinion, Western Asset Liquidity Funds plc’s financial statements: 

• give a true and fair view of the Company’s assets, liabilities and financial position as at 31 August 2023 and of its results for the year then ended; 

• have been properly prepared in accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting Practice in Ireland (accounting standards issued by the Financial Reporting 
Council of the UK, including Financial Reporting Standard 102 “The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland” and Irish law); 
and 

• have been properly prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2014 and the European Communities (Undertakings for Collective 
Investment in Transferable Securities) Regulations 2011 (as amended). 

We have audited the financial statements, included within the Annual Report, which comprise: 

• the Statement of Financial Position as at 31 August 2023; 

• the Statement of Comprehensive Income for the year then ended; 

• the Statement of Changes in Net Assets Attributable to Holders of Redeemable Participating Shares for the year then ended; 

• the Portfolio of Investments as at 31 August 2023; and 

• the notes to the financial statements, which include a description of the significant accounting policies. 

Basis for opinion 
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (Ireland) (“ISAs (Ireland)”) and applicable law. 

Our responsibilities under ISAs (Ireland) are further described in the Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of our report. We 
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 

Independence 
We remained independent of the Company in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in Ireland, which 
includes IAASA’s Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. 

Conclusions relating to going concern 
Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties relating to events or conditions that, individually or collectively, may 
cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern for a period of at least twelve months from the date on which the financial 
statements are authorised for issue. 

In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial 
statements is appropriate. 

However, because not all future events or conditions can be predicted, this conclusion is not a guarantee as to the Company’s ability to continue as a going 
concern. 

Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of the directors with respect to going concern are described in the relevant sections of this report. 

Reporting on other information 
The other information comprises all of the information in the Annual Report other than the financial statements and our auditors’ report thereon. The directors are 
responsible for the other information. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and, accordingly, we do not express an audit 
opinion or, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in this report, any form of assurance thereon. In connection with our audit of the financial statements, 
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements 
or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify an apparent material inconsistency or material 
misstatement, we are required to perform procedures to conclude whether there is a material misstatement of the financial statements or a material 
misstatement of the other information. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we 
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report based on these responsibilities. 

With respect to the Directors’ Report, we also considered whether the disclosures required by the Companies Act 2014 have been included. 

Based on the responsibilities described above and our work undertaken in the course of the audit, ISAs (Ireland) and the Companies Act 2014 require us to also 
report certain opinions and matters as described below: 

• In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit, the information given in the Directors’ Report for the year ended 31 August 2023 is 
consistent with the financial statements and has been prepared in accordance with applicable legal requirements. 

• Based on our knowledge and understanding of the Company and its environment obtained in the course of the audit, we have not identified any material 
misstatements in the Directors’ Report. 
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WESTERN ASSET LIQUIDITY FUNDS PLC 

Independent Auditors’ Report to the Members of Western Asset Liquidity Funds plc – (continued) 

Responsibilities for the financial statements and the audit 

Responsibilities of the directors for the financial statements 
As explained more fully in the Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities, the directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements in accordance 
with the applicable framework and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view. 

The directors are also responsible for such internal control as they determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing as applicable, 
matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Company or to cease 
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so. 

Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud 
or error, and to issue an auditors’ report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit 
conducted in accordance with ISAs (Ireland) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are 
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of 
these financial statements. 

Our audit testing might include testing complete populations of certain transactions and balances, possibly using data auditing techniques. However, it typically 
involves selecting a limited number of items for testing, rather than testing complete populations. We will often seek to target particular items for testing based 
on their size or risk characteristics. In other cases, we will use audit sampling to enable us to draw a conclusion about the population from which the sample is 
selected. 

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the IAASA website at: 

https://www.iaasa.ie/getmedia/b2389013-1cf6-458b-9b8f-a98202dc9c3a/Description_of_auditors_responsibilities_for_audit.pdf. 

This description forms part of our auditors’ report. 

Use of this report 
This report, including the opinions, has been prepared for and only for the Company’s members as a body in accordance with section 391 of the Companies Act 
2014 and for no other purpose. We do not, in giving these opinions, accept or assume responsibility for any other purpose or to any other person to whom this 
report is shown or into whose hands it may come save where expressly agreed by our prior consent in writing. 

Other required reporting 

Companies Act 2014 opinions on other matters 

• We have obtained all the information and explanations which we consider necessary for the purposes of our audit. 

• In our opinion the accounting records of the Company were sufficient to permit the financial statements to be readily and properly audited. 

• The financial statements are in agreement with the accounting records. 

Companies Act 2014 exception reporting 

Directors’ remuneration and transactions 
Under the Companies Act 2014 we are required to report to you if, in our opinion, the disclosures of directors’ remuneration and transactions specified by sections 
305 to 312 of that Act have not been made. We have no exceptions to report arising from this responsibility. 

David Pickerill 
for and on behalf of PricewaterhouseCoopers 
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Audit Firm 
Dublin 

7 December 2023 
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WESTERN ASSET LIQUIDITY FUNDS PLC 

Portfolio of Investments as at 31 August 2023 

WESTERN ASSET US DOLLAR LIQUIDITY FUND 

Nominal Issuer* Coupon Rate/Yield % Due On Valuation $ % of Net Assets 

 CERTIFICATES OF DEPOSIT: 32.51% (31 August 2022: 24.26%) 
15,000,000 *** Banco Santander S.A. 5.820 24-Oct-23 15,006,057 0.53 
15,000,000 *** Banco Santander S.A. 5.850 1-Dec-23 15,008,477 0.54 
10,000,000 Banco Santander S.A. 5.890 19-Jan-24 10,001,107 0.35 
25,000,000 Bank of America NA 6.000 20-Aug-24 25,023,285 0.90 
25,000,000 Bank of Montreal (Chicago) 5.400 13-Oct-23 24,991,394 0.89 
25,000,000 *** Bank of Montreal (Chicago) 5.800 12-Feb-24 25,014,179 0.89 
25,000,000 *** Bank of Montreal (Chicago) 5.830 12-Apr-24 25,009,299 0.89 
25,000,000 *** Bank of Nova Scotia (The) 5.800 8-Feb-24 25,016,537 0.89 
25,000,000 *** BNP Paribas (NY) 5.640 3-Nov-23 25,004,776 0.90 
25,000,000 Canadian Imperial Bank (NY) 5.600 1-Dec-23 25,003,876 0.89 
15,000,000 *** Canadian Imperial Bank (NY) 6.000 1-Apr-24 15,034,314 0.54 
15,000,000 Canadian Imperial Bank (NY) 6.000 28-Jun-24 15,011,684 0.54 
30,000,000 *** Citibank 5.700 18-Dec-23 30,010,245 1.07 
25,000,000 Citibank 5.630 1-Mar-24 24,968,847 0.89 
30,000,000 Credit Agricole CIB (NY) 5.450 20-Nov-23 29,993,771 1.07 
35,000,000 DNB Bank ASA 5.390 16-Nov-23 34,992,816 1.25 
50,000,000 KBC Bank (NY) 5.310 7-Sep-23 50,000,000 1.79 
60,000,000 Mitsubishi UFJ Trust and Banking Corp 5.330 6-Sep-23 60,000,000 2.14 
20,000,000 *** Mizuho Bank Ltd (NY) 5.840 6-Nov-23 20,011,668 0.71 
20,000,000 *** Mizuho Bank Ltd (NY) 5.900 26-Feb-24 20,019,574 0.71 
15,000,000 *** MUFG Bank 5.800 6-Oct-23 15,003,426 0.54 
25,000,000 MUFG Bank 5.680 11-Dec-23 25,003,261 0.89 
15,000,000 Natixis (NY) 5.370 7-Dec-23 14,982,515 0.54 
25,000,000 *** Natixis (NY) 5.800 23-May-24 25,002,928 0.89 
50,000,000 Norinchukin Bank (NY) 5.310 5-Sep-23 50,000,000 1.79 
10,000,000 *** Norinchukin Bank (NY) 5.740 16-Jan-24 10,004,975 0.36 
10,000,000 *** Oversea-Chinese Banking Corp (NY) 5.650 7-Nov-23 10,002,457 0.36 
25,000,000 *** Oversea-Chinese Banking Corp (NY) 5.700 6-Dec-23 25,010,095 0.89 
25,000,000 Rabobank Nederland NV (NY) 5.340 29-Sep-23 24,997,575 0.89 
25,000,000 *** Royal Bank of Canada (NY) 5.820 26-Mar-24 25,018,771 0.90 
35,000,000 *** Sumitomo Mitsui Banking Corp (NY) 5.670 10-Nov-23 35,009,819 1.25 
20,000,000 *** Sumitomo Mitsui Banking Corp (NY) 5.980 19-Apr-24 20,023,001 0.72 
25,000,000 Sumitomo Mitsui Trust Bank (NY) 5.310 6-Sep-23 25,000,000 0.89 
15,000,000 Svenska Handelsbanken (NY) 5.160 1-Nov-23 14,991,064 0.54 
25,000,000 Swedbank AB 5.550 16-Feb-24 24,969,294 0.89 
25,000,000 *** Swedbank AB 5.830 19-Apr-24 25,017,612 0.90 
25,000,000 Toronto Dominion Bank 5.850 8-Mar-24 24,983,422 0.89 

    910,142,121 32.51 

 COMMERCIAL PAPER: 33.00% (31 August 2022: 23.69%) 
10,000,000 ** Banco Santander S.A. 5.400 10-Nov-23 9,894,613 0.35 
25,000,000 ** Bank of America Securities Inc 5.500 20-Nov-23 24,694,556 0.88 
25,000,000 ** Barclays Bank UK Plc 5.320 5-Sep-23 24,981,528 0.89 
75,000,000 ** Barclays Bank UK Plc 5.320 6-Sep-23 74,933,501 2.68 
25,000,000 ** BNG Bank N.V. 5.310 5-Sep-23 24,981,562 0.89 
50,000,000 ** BNG Bank N.V. 5.320 6-Sep-23 49,955,668 1.78 
30,000,000 ** BNG Bank N.V. 5.330 11-Sep-23 29,951,234 1.07 
15,000,000 ** BPCE 5.530 20-Nov-23 14,815,800 0.53 
15,000,000 ** BPCE 5.740 1-Feb-24 14,640,769 0.52 
15,000,000 ** Coca-Cola Co 5.520 22-May-24 14,414,360 0.52 
10,000,000 ** DBS Bank Ltd 5.180 12-Oct-23 9,939,879 0.36 
25,000,000 ** Fortis Bank (NY) 5.700 26-Feb-24 24,310,497 0.87 
34,630,000 ** Hydro-Quebec 4.430 5-Sep-23 34,608,717 1.24 
25,000,000 ** ING U.S. Funding LLC 5.380 3-Nov-23 24,762,984 0.88 
25,000,000 ** ING U.S. Funding LLC 5.740 1-Mar-24 24,290,832 0.87 
25,000,000 ** Johnson & Johnson 5.060 13-Sep-23 24,954,369 0.89 
25,000,000 ** Lloyds Bank Ltd 5.370 2-Nov-23 24,767,317 0.89 
25,000,000 ** Lloyds Bank Ltd 5.520 21-Nov-23 24,689,669 0.88 
20,000,000 ** Mizuho Bank Ltd (SG) 5.490 23-Oct-23 19,839,779 0.71 
25,000,000 ** National Bank of Canada 5.660 1-Feb-24 24,408,825 0.87 
30,000,000 ** Nationwide Building Society 5.310 5-Sep-23 29,977,896 1.07 
25,000,000 ** Skandinaviska Enskilda Banken 5.380 16-Nov-23 24,715,739 0.88 
50,000,000 ** Societe Generale 5.300 1-Sep-23 49,992,639 1.79 
25,000,000 ** Societe Generale 5.390 31-Oct-23 24,773,926 0.88 
25,000,000 ** Standard Chartered Bank 5.290 3-Nov-23 24,767,224 0.88 
50,000,000 ** Sumitomo Mitsui Trust Bank Ltd 5.360 7-Sep-23 49,947,985 1.78 
25,000,000 ** Sumitomo Mitsui Trust Bank Ltd 5.470 28-Sep-23 24,894,029 0.89 
15,000,000 ** Svenska Handelsbanken AB 5.340 20-Nov-23 14,821,833 0.53 
15,000,000 ** Svenska Handelsbanken AB 5.530 8-Jan-24 14,706,417 0.53 
25,000,000 ** Svenska Handelsbanken AB 5.890 28-May-24 23,937,812 0.86 
35,000,000 ** TotalEnergies Capital Canada Ltd 5.310 1-Sep-23 34,994,837 1.25 
50,000,000 ** TotalEnergies Capital Canada Ltd 5.330 7-Sep-23 49,948,278 1.78 
36,750,000 ** Westpac Banking Corp 5.140 22-Sep-23 36,635,002 1.31 

    923,950,076 33.00 

 
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Financial Statements. 
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WESTERN ASSET LIQUIDITY FUNDS PLC 

Portfolio of Investments as at 31 August 2023 – (continued) 

WESTERN ASSET US DOLLAR LIQUIDITY FUND – (continued) 

Nominal Issuer* Coupon Rate/Yield % Due On Valuation $ % of Net Assets 

 VARIABLE RATE NOTES: 5.54% (31 August 2022: 13.41%) 
25,000,000 *** Bank of Nova Scotia (The) 5.670 16-Oct-23 25,004,166 0.89 
15,000,000 *** JP Morgan Securities LLC 5.830 15-Apr-24 15,002,872 0.54 
10,000,000 *** Nordea Bank AB 5.820 5-Apr-24 10,008,190 0.36 
25,000,000 *** Royal Bank of Canada (NY) 6.000 27-Mar-24 25,044,221 0.90 
30,000,000 *** Skandinaviska Enskilda Banken 5.830 20-Mar-24 30,026,970 1.07 
25,000,000 *** Toronto Dominion Bank 5.510 6-Dec-23 24,999,818 0.89 
25,000,000 *** UBS AG 5.446 6-Dec-23 24,999,827 0.89 

    155,086,064 5.54 

      
 TOTAL TRANSFERABLE SECURITIES   1,989,178,261 71.05 

 TIME DEPOSITS: 29.06% (31 August 2022: 40.33%)† 
35,000,000 Banco Santander S.A. (NY) 5.310 1-Sep-23 35,000,000 1.25 
50,000,000 BNP Paribas 5.300 1-Sep-23 50,000,000 1.78 
50,210,000 Canadian Imperial Bank 5.310 1-Sep-23 50,210,000 1.79 
50,000,000 Credit Agricole CIB (NY) 5.300 1-Sep-23 50,000,000 1.79 
73,389,000 Mizuho Bank Ltd (NY) 5.320 1-Sep-23 73,389,000 2.62 
75,000,000 National Bank of Canada Montreal 5.310 1-Sep-23 75,000,000 2.68 
50,000,000 Nordea Bank AB (NY) 5.300 1-Sep-23 50,000,000 1.79 
75,000,000 NRW.Bank 5.310 5-Sep-23 75,000,000 2.68 
25,000,000 NRW.Bank 5.310 6-Sep-23 25,000,000 0.89 
50,000,000 Rabobank Nederland NV (NY) 5.300 1-Sep-23 50,000,000 1.78 
50,000,000 Royal Bank of Canada 5.310 1-Sep-23 50,000,000 1.79 
40,000,000 Skandinaviska Enskilda Banken 5.310 1-Sep-23 40,000,000 1.43 
50,000,000 Svenka Handelsbanken (NY) 5.290 1-Sep-23 50,000,000 1.79 
75,000,000 Swedbank AB (NY) 5.300 1-Sep-23 75,000,000 2.68 
65,000,000 Toronto Dominion Bank 5.310 1-Sep-23 65,000,000 2.32 

    813,599,000 29.06 

 FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS  2,802,777,261 100.11 

 Liabilities in Excess of Other Assets   (3,032,946) (0.11) 

 NET ASSETS ATTRIBUTABLE TO HOLDERS OF REDEEMABLE PARTICIPATING SHARES 2,799,744,315 100.00 

 * All securities, except deposits with credit institutions, are transferable securities dealt in on a regulated market. 
 ** Rate reflects yield to maturity as at 31 August 2023. 
 *** Reflects variable rate security as at 31 August 2023. 
 † Deposits with credit institutions. 

 ANALYSIS OF TOTAL ASSETS    % of Total Assets 
 Transferable securities admitted to an official exchange listing or traded on a regulated market  5.52 
 Other transferable securities dealt in on another regulated market  65.23 
 Deposits with credit institutions  28.93 
 Other assets    0.32 
 TOTAL ASSETS    100.00 

 
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Financial Statements. 
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WESTERN ASSET LIQUIDITY FUNDS PLC 

Statement of Financial Position 

Western Asset US Dollar Liquidity Fund and Company Total  
As at 

31 August 2023 
As at 

31 August 2022 

  $ $ 

Current Assets    
Cash 3 750 8,184 
Financial Assets at Fair Value through Profit or Loss    
– Transferable Securities  1,989,178,261 1,441,723,159 
– Deposits with Credit Institutions  813,599,000 947,520,000 
– Reverse Repurchase Agreements 15 – 23,000,000 
Interest Receivable  9,148,640 1,603,835 
Receivable from Investment Manager 7,8 – 10,255 
Other Assets  15,543 13,355 
Total Current Assets  2,811,942,194 2,413,878,788 

Current Liabilities    
Dividend Distributions Payable 
to Holders of Redeemable Participating Shares 5 11,787,878 4,004,411 
Payable for Investments Purchased  – 59,941,916 
Investment Manager’s Fee Payable 7,8 105,137 – 
Administration, Transfer Agent Services 
and Depositary Fees Payable 7 60,340 61,315 
Distribution Fee Payable 7,8 100,658 78,622 
Accrued Expenses  143,866 204,347 
Total Liabilities (Excluding Net Assets Attributable 
to Holders of Redeemable Participating Shares)  12,197,879 64,290,611 

Total Net Assets Attributable 
to Holders of Redeemable Participating Shares  2,799,744,315 2,349,588,177 

Number of Redeemable Participating Shares in issue    
Class D 6 2,610,948,963 2,146,845,773 
Class S 6 51,126 51,080 
Class C 6 7 7 
Class WA (Distributing) 6 188,656,523 202,629,687 

Net Asset Value per Share    
Class D 13 $1.00 $1.00 
Class S 13 $1.00 $1.00 
Class C 13 $149.7784 $143.3017 
Class WA (Distributing) 13 $1.00 $1.00 

On behalf of the Board: 

Joseph Keane  Fionnuala Doris 

7 December 2023 

 
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Financial Statements. 
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WESTERN ASSET LIQUIDITY FUNDS PLC 

Statement of Comprehensive Income 

Western Asset US Dollar Liquidity Fund and Company Total  
For the year ended 

31 August 2023 
For the year ended 

31 August 2022 

  $ $ 

Income    
Investment Income 3 104,951,927 12,348,016 

Net Gain/(Loss) on Financial Assets 
at Fair Value through Profit or Loss    
Net Unrealised Gain/(Loss) on Investments  26,018 (66,605) 
Total Net Gain/(Loss) on Financial Assets 
at Fair Value through Profit or Loss  26,018 (66,605) 
Net Investment Income  104,977,945 12,281,411 

Expenditure    
Distribution Fee 7,8 (1,009,597) (759,830) 
Investment Manager’s Fee 7,8 (2,826,803) (2,125,862) 
Administration, Transfer Agent Services 
and Depositary Fees 7 (577,714) (472,316) 
Audit Fees 7 (22,489) (17,728) 
Other Expenses  (292,814) (310,095) 
Total Operating Expenses  (4,729,417) (3,685,831) 
Less: Expenses reimbursed 
and Fees waived by Investment Manager 7,8 1,793,472 1,504,890 
Net Expenses before Finance Costs  (2,935,945) (2,180,941) 
Net Income from Operations  102,042,000 10,100,470 

Finance Costs    
Dividend Distributions 
to Holders of Redeemable Participating Shares 5 (102,015,934) (10,167,070) 
Total Finance Costs  (102,015,934) (10,167,070) 
Net Increase/(Decrease) in Net Assets Attributable 
to Holders of Redeemable Participating Shares from Operations  26,066 (66,600) 

Gains and losses are solely from continuing operations. There were no other gains or losses other than those dealt with in the Statement of Comprehensive 
Income. 

 
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Financial Statements. 
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WESTERN ASSET LIQUIDITY FUNDS PLC 

Statement of Changes in Net Assets Attributable to Holders of Redeemable Participating Shares 

Western Asset US Dollar Liquidity Fund and Company Total  
For the year ended 

31 August 2023 
For the year ended 

31 August 2022 

  $ $ 

Net Assets Attributable 
to Holders of Redeemable Participating Shares    
Beginning of year  2,349,588,177 2,066,181,173 
Net Increase/(Decrease) in Net Assets Attributable 
to Holders of Redeemable Participating Shares from Operations  26,066 (66,600) 

REDEEMABLE PARTICIPATING SHARE TRANSACTIONS    
Proceeds from Redeemable 
Participating Shares Subscribed 6 20,385,373,216 19,135,048,824 
Net Asset Value of Redeemable Participating Shares 
Issued for Reinvestment of Distributions 6 78,614,286 5,246,787 
Cost of Redeemable Participating Shares Redeemed 6 (20,013,857,430) (18,856,822,007) 
Increase in Net Assets 
from Redeemable Participating Share Transactions  450,130,072 283,473,604 

Increase in Net Assets Attributable 
to Holders of Redeemable Participating Shares  450,156,138 283,407,004 
End of year 13 2,799,744,315 2,349,588,177 

 
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Financial Statements. 
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WESTERN ASSET LIQUIDITY FUNDS PLC 

Notes to Financial Statements 

1. Organisation 

Western Asset Liquidity Funds plc (the “Company”) was incorporated in Ireland on 19 February 1996 under registration number 244870 and is an investment 
company with variable capital and is authorised by the Central Bank of Ireland (the “Central Bank”) pursuant to the Central Bank UCITS Regulations. The Company 
commenced trading on 19 April 1996. 

The Company is constituted as an umbrella fund insofar as the share capital of the Company (the “Shares” or “Redeemable Participating Shares”) is divided into 
different classes of shares, with each class relating to a portfolio of assets which comprise a separate fund (a “Fund”). Shares in any particular Fund may be 
divided into different classes to accommodate different subscriptions and/or redemption provisions and/or charges and/or fee arrangements. The liability of each 
Fund is segregated. As such, as a matter of Irish Law, the assets of each of the Funds will not be exposed to the liabilities of the other Funds. Notwithstanding the 
foregoing there can be no assurance that should an action be brought against the Company in the court of another jurisdiction, the segregated nature of the Funds 
would necessarily be upheld. 

As at 31 August 2023, one active Fund is in existence, Western Asset US Dollar Liquidity Fund. 

2. Investment Objectives 

The investment objective of Western Asset US Dollar Liquidity Fund is to maintain capital value while seeking to produce a return to investors in line with money 
market rates. There is no guarantee that the capital will be maintained. 

3. Significant Accounting Policies 

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below: 

(a) Statement of Compliance 

The financial statements for the financial year ended 31 August 2023 have been prepared in accordance with the accounting standards generally accepted in 
Ireland, including Financial Reporting Standard (“FRS”) 102: “The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the United Kingdom and the Republic of Ireland” 
(“FRS 102”) and Irish statute comprising the Companies Act 2014, the European Communities (Undertakings for Collective Investment in Transferable Securities) 
Regulations 2011 (as amended) (the “UCITS Regulations”) and the Central Bank UCITS Regulations. These policies are consistent with the policies applied in the 
financial statements for the financial year ended 31 August 2022. 

Basis of Preparation 

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention as modified by the revaluation of financial assets at fair value through profit 
or loss. 

The format and certain wordings of the financial statements have been adapted from those contained in Irish statute so that, in the opinion of the Directors, they 
more appropriately reflect the nature of the Company’s business as an investment fund. 

The Company has availed of the exemption available to open-ended investment funds under Section 7 “Statement of Cash Flows” of FRS 102 not to prepare a 
cash flow statement on the basis that substantially all of the Company’s investments are highly liquid and carried at fair value, and the Company provides a 
statement of changes in net assets attributable to holders of redeemable participating shares. 

(b) Financial Instruments 

The Company has classified all its investment securities and derivatives as held for trading and are at fair value through profit or loss. Financial assets and 
financial liabilities held for trading are securities which are either acquired for generating a profit from short term fluctuations in price or dealer margins, or are 
included in a portfolio where a pattern of short term trading exists. 

Regular-way purchases and sales of financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised on trade date, the date on which the Company commits to purchase or 
sell the asset. Investments are initially recognised at fair value for all financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss. Transaction costs, if any, are 
expensed as incurred. Investments are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the investments have expired or the Company has transferred 
substantially all risks and rewards of ownership. 

Financial assets that are not at fair value through profit or loss include amounts receivable for redeemable participating shares sold, receivable for investments 
sold, interest receivable and receivables from the Investment Manager. 

Financial liabilities that are not at fair value through profit or loss include amounts payable for redeemable participating shares purchased, payable for 
investments purchased and accrued expenses. 

Gains and losses arising from changes in the fair value of the ‘financial assets at fair value through profit or loss’ category are included in the Statement of 
Comprehensive Income in the financial year in which they arise. 
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WESTERN ASSET LIQUIDITY FUNDS PLC 

Notes to Financial Statements – (continued) 

3. Significant Accounting Policies – (continued) 

(b) Financial Instruments (continued) 

Under FRS 102, the fair value of investments traded in active markets (such as publicly traded derivatives and trading securities) is based on quoted market prices 
at the Statement of Financial Position date without any deduction for future selling costs. In the absence of quoted market prices at the Statement of Financial 
Position date, the fair value of certain money market instruments is valued at amortised cost which is considered to be a proxy for market value. 

The Company may from time to time invest in financial instruments that are not traded in an active market (for example in over-the-counter derivatives). The fair 
value is estimated by using valuation techniques. The Company uses a variety of methods and makes assumptions that are based on market conditions existing at 
each Statement of Financial Position date. Valuation techniques used include the use of comparable recent arm’s length transactions, discounted cash flow 
analysis and other valuation techniques commonly used by market participants. 

Certain securities may be valued on the basis of a price provided by a single broker. The Company may invest in securities with contractual cash flows, such as 
asset backed securities and certificates of deposit, including securities backed by mortgage loans. The value, liquidity and related income of these securities are 
sensitive to changes in economic conditions, including real estate values, delinquencies and/or defaults, and may be adversely affected by shifts in the market’s 
perception of the issuers and changes in interest rates. 

For the purposes of determining the Net Asset Value, on a daily basis, all financial assets held by the Fund are valued using amortised cost, except for those 
financial assets held with greater than 75 days to maturity, which are valued at fair value (mark-to-market method or the mark-to-model method). Refer to 
Note 14.1(d) for further details. 

There is no material difference between the Net Asset Value calculated using the amortised cost method and the fair value method as at 31 August 2023 or 
31 August 2022. 

(c) Accounting for Investments 

Investment transactions are accounted for on trade date. Investments are initially recognised at fair value and transaction costs for all “fair valued through profit 
or loss” securities are expensed as incurred. Gains and losses on the sale of investments are calculated by using the First-In-First-Out (“FIFO”) method. Realised 
gains/losses on investments arising during the current and prior financial years are disclosed in the Statement of Comprehensive Income. 

(d) Income from Investments 

Interest income and expenses are recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income for all debt instruments using the effective yield method. 

The Investment Manager monitors interest income receivable for any delinquent interest receivable amounts. The accounts have been reviewed for delinquent 
interest receivable and as at the current and prior financial year end, all amounts were deemed to be recoverable. 

(e) Expenses 

Certain expenses are share class specific expenses and are charged directly to the share class. General Fund expenses are allocated to the various share classes 
on the basis of relative Net Asset Value. 

(f) Net Asset Value 

The Net Asset Value per Redeemable Participating Share of the Fund’s share class is determined by dividing the Net Asset Value of the relevant class of share of 
the Fund by the total number of Redeemable Participating Shares outstanding in the relevant class of share of the Fund. 

(g) Dividends and Distributions to Holders of Redeemable Participating Shares 

Distributions to holders of redeemable participating shares are recognised as “finance costs” in the Statement of Comprehensive Income, when declared. For non-
distributing share classes, all income and realised net capital gains after the deduction of expenses will be accumulated and reflected in the net asset value per 
share. 

(h) Non-Base Currency Translation 

Any non-base currency assets and liabilities of the Fund as at the current and prior financial year end are translated into the base currency at the exchange rate 
ruling at the year end. 

Transactions denominated in non-base currencies are translated into the base currency of the Fund and recorded at the exchange rates prevailing at the date of 
the transactions. Any resulting exchange differences are dealt with in the Statement of Comprehensive Income. 

The Fund’s functional currency has been adopted as the presentation currency of the Fund for these financial statements. The Company’s presentation currency is 
US Dollars ($). 

(i) Cash 

Cash balances of the Funds are held with The Bank of New York Mellon SA/NV, Dublin Branch. 

(j) Transaction Costs 

Transaction costs are costs incurred to acquire financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss. Transaction costs may include fees and 
commissions paid to agents, advisors, brokers and dealers. Transaction costs, when incurred, are immediately recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income. 
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WESTERN ASSET LIQUIDITY FUNDS PLC 

Notes to Financial Statements – (continued) 

4. Exchange Rates 

Items included in the Fund’s financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment in which the Fund operates (the 
“functional currency”). The Company has adopted the functional currency of the Fund as the presentation currency for these financial statements. The financial 
statements of the Company are presented in US Dollars ($). The functional currency of the Fund is US Dollars ($). 

5. Dividends and Distributions Payable 

 
Western Asset US Dollar 

Liquidity Fund 

 For the year ended 

 
31 August 2023 

$ 
31 August 2022 

$ 

Dividend distributions payable at beginning of year – Class D 3,597,951 13,893 
Dividend distributions payable at beginning of year – Class S 99 – 
Dividend distributions payable at beginning of year – Class WA (Distributing) 406,361 22,221 
Total dividend distributions payable at beginning of year 4,004,411 36,114 

Dividend distributions to holders of Redeemable 
Participating Shares accrued during the year – Class D 91,738,331 8,861,253 
Dividend distributions to holders of Redeemable 
Participating Shares accrued during the year – Class S 2,287 258 
Dividend distributions to holders of Redeemable 
Participating Shares accrued during the year – Class WA (Distributing) 10,275,316 1,305,559 
Total dividend distributions to holders of Redeemable 
Participating Shares accrued during the year 102,015,934 10,167,070 

Dividend distributions paid in the year – Class D 84,524,278 5,277,195 
Dividend distributions paid in the year – Class S 2,153 159 
Dividend distributions paid in the year – Class WA (Distributing) 9,706,036 921,419 
Total dividend distributions paid in the year 94,232,467 6,198,773 

Dividend distributions payable at end of year – Class D 10,812,004 3,597,951 
Dividend distributions payable at end of year – Class S 233 99 
Dividend distributions payable at end of year – Class WA (Distributing) 975,641 406,361 
Total dividend distributions payable at end of year 11,787,878 4,004,411 

For Class D, Class S, Class P and Class WA (Distributing) shares, dividends are declared daily and distributed monthly. Dividends are distributed in the form of 
additional shares in those classes, or in cash, at the election of the shareholder. 

Class D, Class S, Class P and Class WA (Distributing) shares seek to maintain a constant Net Asset Value per Redeemable Participating Share of 1 unit per 1.00 of 
the base currency but there is no assurance that they will be able to do so. Class C and Class WA (Accumulating) shares do not distribute dividends and any net 
investment income attributable to these shares will be retained by such class within the Fund and the Net Asset Value per Redeemable Participating Share will 
accordingly reflect such net investment income. 

6. Paid in Capital 

Authorised Redeemable Participating Shares 

The authorised share capital of the Company is comprised of €38,092.14 divided into 30,000 subscriber shares of €1.269738 each and 500,000,000,000 shares of 
no par value initially designated as unclassified Redeemable Participating Shares, which have subsequently been classified as Class D, S, C, P, WA 
(Accumulating) and WA (Distributing) shares. The subscriber shares do not form part of the Net Asset Value of the Company. 
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WESTERN ASSET LIQUIDITY FUNDS PLC 

Notes to Financial Statements – (continued) 

6. Paid in Capital – (continued) 

Details of share transactions for the financial years ended 31 August 2023 and 31 August 2022 were as follows: 

 
Western Asset US 

Dollar Liquidity Fund 

 For the year ended 

 31 August 2023 31 August 2022 

Class D – Balance beginning of year 2,146,845,773 1,735,690,606 
Redeemable Participating Shares subscribed 17,449,877,648 16,082,155,564 
Redeemable Participating Shares reinvested 77,529,768 5,131,443 
Redeemable Participating Shares redeemed (17,063,304,226) (15,676,131,840) 
Balance end of year 2,610,948,963 2,146,845,773 

Class S – Balance beginning of year 51,080 51,076 
Redeemable Participating Shares subscribed – 1 
Redeemable Participating Shares reinvested 46 4 
Redeemable Participating Shares redeemed – (1) 
Balance end of year 51,126 51,080 

Class C – Balance beginning of year 7 7 
Redeemable Participating Shares subscribed – – 
Redeemable Participating Shares reinvested – – 
Redeemable Participating Shares redeemed – – 
Balance end of year 7 7 

Class WA (Distributing) – Balance beginning of year 202,629,687 330,311,254 
Redeemable Participating Shares subscribed 2,935,495,568 3,052,893,259 
Redeemable Participating Shares reinvested 1,084,472 115,340 
Redeemable Participating Shares redeemed (2,950,553,204) (3,180,690,166) 
Balance end of year 188,656,523 202,629,687 

The shares issued by the Company are freely transferable and are entitled to participate equally in the profits and dividends of the relevant Fund and its assets 
upon liquidation. The liability of each Fund is segregated. As such, as a matter of Irish Law, the assets of each of the Funds will not be exposed to the liabilities of 
the other Funds. Notwithstanding the foregoing there can be no assurance that should an action be brought against the Company in the court of another 
jurisdiction, the segregated nature of the Funds would necessarily be upheld. The shares, which are of no par value and which must be fully paid-up on issue, 
carry no preferential or pre-emptive rights. All shares of each Fund rank pari passu. Holders of redeemable participating shares are entitled to one vote or a poll at 
general meetings in respect of each redeemable participating share held. 

The shares are redeemable at the shareholder’s option and are therefore classified as a financial liability. 

7. Operating Expenses 

BNY Mellon Fund Services (Ireland) Designated Activity Company (the “Administrator”) acts as Transfer Agent and Administrator of the Company. The Bank of 
New York Mellon SA/NV, Dublin Branch acts as Depositary (the “Depositary”). The Administrator and the Depositary receive from the Fund a combined monthly 
fee calculated at an annual rate not to exceed 0.0251875% of the daily net asset value of the Fund. This fee encompasses the Administrator’s and the 
Depositary’s combined services as transfer agent, administrator and depositary, excluding out-of-pocket expenses. 

The Fund’s operating expenses are based on a percentage of the average Net Asset Value of the specific share class on a daily basis. Operating expenses are 
inclusive of portfolio management, depositary, administration, distribution and all other services and out-of-pocket expenses associated with the Fund’s 
operation. General Fund expenses are allocated on the basis of relative Net Asset Value. 

Pursuant to the management agreement between the Company and Franklin Templeton International Services S.à r.l (“FTIS” or the “Manager”), FTIS acts as the 
Manager to the Company. The Manager is organised under the laws of Luxembourg and is authorized and regulated by the Commission de Surveillance du 
Secteur Financier. 

Pursuant to the investment management agreement (the “Investment Management Agreement”), the Manager has delegated its investment management 
functions to Western Asset Management Company, LLC. Pursuant to the sub-investment management agreement (the “Sub-Investment Management 
Agreement”), Western Asset Management Company, LLC has appointed Western Asset Management Company Limited as sub-investment manager. 
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7. Operating Expenses – (continued) 

The fees payable to the Sub-Investment Manager are paid by the Investment Manager out of its fee. For the financial year ended 31 August 2023, the maximum 
Investment Manager’s Fees borne by the shares of the Fund (expressed as a percentage of the average daily Net Asset Value of the Fund on an annual basis) did 
not exceed 0.14% for Class D shares, 0.16% for Class S shares and 0.11% for Class C shares (31 August 2022: 0.14%, 0.16% and 0.11% respectively). No 
Investment Manager’s Fees were charged on Class WA (Distributing) shares. If the total operating expenses borne by each class, on any day, exceeds the 
maximum expense ratio, the Investment Manager waives its investment management fee to maintain the maximum expense ratio. The Investment Manager will 
further reimburse expenses to the Fund if the other operating costs exceed the maximum expense ratio, for each class, on a daily basis. 

The total operating expenses borne by the shares of the Fund will not exceed 0.20% for Class C shares, 0.16% for Class D shares, 0.12% for Class P shares, 0.20% 
for Class S shares and 0.10% for Class WA (Accumulating) and Class WA (Distributing) shares, of the average daily Net Asset Value of the Fund on an annual basis. 

There has been no reimbursement of expenses by the Investment Manager for the financial year ended 31 August 2023 (31 August 2022: $915). 

Audit Fees 
Fees paid to the auditors, PwC of €17,225 (excluding VAT) (31 August 2022: €14,500), in respect of the financial year, relate to statutory audit of the financial 
statements of the Company. No fees were paid in respect of non-audit services and out-of-pocket expenses. 

8. Related Party Transactions 

Investment management fees charged for the financial years ended 31 August 2023 and 31 August 2022 and amounts payable as at 31 August 2023 and 31 August 2022 
in respect of these services are detailed below: 

 
Western Asset US 

Dollar Liquidity Fund 

 For the year ended 

 
31 August 2023 

$ 
31 August 2022 

$ 

Investment Manager’s Fee charged 2,826,803 2,125,862 
Less:   
Expenses reimbursed by Investment Manager – (915) 
Fees waived by Investment Manager (1,793,472) (1,503,975) 
Total net Investment Manager’s Fee charged 1,033,331 620,972 
Investment Manager’s Fee payable at year end 105,137 – 
Receivable from Investment Manager at year end – (10,255) 

Distribution Fee charged 1,009,597 759,830 
Distribution Fee payable at year end 100,658 78,622 

Transactions with the Investment Manager, the Master Distributor and the Distributor have been entered into in the normal course of business and on normal 
commercial terms. 

Distribution fees are payable by the Fund at: 

� a rate of 0.05% per annum of the Net Asset Value, with respect to Class C and Class D shares; 

� a rate of 0.10% per annum of the Net Asset Value, with respect to Class S shares; and 

� no compensation with respect to Class WA (Accumulating) and Class WA (Distributing) shares. 

The aggregate compensation and expenses shall be payable in monthly instalments, and shall be calculated at the end of each calendar month in respect of the 
Fund and each class by applying a daily distribution calculation based on the daily net assets of the Fund at the applicable rate. Franklin Distributors, LLC will 
receive these fees only in respect of net assets of the Fund which are distributed or sold by Franklin Distributors, LLC or its appointed distributors or any appointed 
sub-distributors or selling agents. The sum of such calculations shall be payable during the course of the next calendar month. 

Additionally, certain operating expenses, including but not limited to, fees payable to subsidiaries of Franklin Templeton for the provision of governance support 
and reporting to the Board, insurance services to the Board and ongoing registration services for jurisdictions where the Fund is publicly offered. For the financial 
year ended 31 August 2023, these expenses amounted to $79,425 (31 August 2022: $67,083). 

Jane Trust, Joseph Carrier, Jaspal Sagger, William Jackson (up to the date of his resignation) and Craig Tyle are or have been Directors of the Company and have 
also been directors and/or executives of certain affiliates of the Manager, the Investment Manager, the Distributor and the Shareholder Servicing Agent. 
Jane Trust and William Jackson (up to the date of his resignation) is or has been a Director of FTIS. The remaining Directors of the Company, as listed above, are 
all employees of either FTIS or one of its affiliates. Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors has or has had any interest, direct or indirect, in any contract or 
arrangement subsisting at the date hereof which is significant in relation to the business of the Company. Details of Directors’ fees and out-of-pocket expenses 
accrued for Independent Directors are disclosed in Note 12 of these Financial Statements. 
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8. Related Party Transactions – (continued) 

Other Related Party Transactions 
Significant shareholders are defined as those shareholders that hold more than 20% of the issued share capital. As at 31 August 2023 and 31 August 2022, there 
were no significant shareholders with aggregate percentage ownership of 20% of the Fund. 

At any point in time, shares in the Fund may be held by other collective investment schemes which have appointed the same Manager, Investment Manager, or 
Sub-Investment Manager as the Fund, or have appointed a related party of that Manager, Investment Manager or Sub-Investment Manager. 

The Board of Directors (the “Board”) is not aware of any transactions with related parties during the financial years ended 31 August 2023 and 31 August 2022 
other than those disclosed in these financial statements. 

9. Taxation 

Under current Irish law and practice, the Company qualifies as an investment undertaking as defined in Section 739B of the Taxes Consolidation Act, 1997 (as 
amended). On that basis, the Company will not generally be liable to Irish tax in respect of its income and gains, other than on the occurrence of a chargeable 
event. Generally a chargeable event arises on any distribution, redemption, repurchase, cancellation, transfer of shares or on the ending of a ‘Relevant Period’, a 
‘Relevant Period’ being an eight year period beginning with the acquisition of the shares by the Shareholders and each subsequent period of eight years beginning 
immediately after the preceding Relevant Period. 

No Irish tax will arise on the Company in respect of chargeable events in respect of: 

(i) a shareholder who is neither Irish resident nor ordinarily resident in Ireland for tax purposes, at the time of the chargeable event, provided an appropriate 
valid declaration is in place, or the Company has been authorised by Irish Revenue to make gross payments in the absence of appropriate declarations; and 

(ii) certain exempted Irish tax resident shareholders who have provided the Company with the necessary signed statutory declarations. 

In addition, any transaction (which might otherwise be a chargeable event) in relation to shares held in a recognised clearing system as designated by order of the 
Irish Revenue Commissioners will not constitute a chargeable event. 

In the absence of an appropriate declaration, the Company will be liable to Irish tax on the occurrence of a chargeable event. There were no chargeable events 
during the year under review. 

10. Commitments and Contingent Liabilities 

At the Statement of Financial Position date, there were no significant commitments or contingent liabilities. 

11. Soft Commission Arrangements 

There were no soft commissions paid during the current and prior financial years. 

12. Directors’ Remuneration 

Directors’ fees and out-of-pocket expenses accrued in the Statement of Comprehensive Income under Other Expenses and which pertain to the financial year 
ended 31 August 2023 were $55,049 (31 August 2022: $58,760). 

Directors’ fees are or have not been payable in respect of Jane Trust, Jaspal Sagger, William Jackson (up to the date of his resignation) and Craig Tyle who are or 
have been employees of the Manager, the Investment Manager or their affiliates. Directors’ fees were not payable in respect of Joseph Carrier up to 3 October 
2022, the date of cessation of his full-time employment with Franklin Templeton Investments. Mr. Carrier shall continue to act as a non-executive Director of the 
Company and shall from 3 October 2022 be remunerated in line with the other non-executive Directors of the Company. 
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13. Comparative Table – Net Asset Values Attributable to Holders of Redeemable Participating Shares 

 Year Ended 
Total Net 

Asset Value 
Net Asset 

Value Per Share 

Western Asset US Dollar Liquidity Fund    
– Class D 31/08/2023 $2,611,071,169 $1.00 
– Class S 31/08/2023 $51,118 $1.00 
– Class C 31/08/2023 $1,122 $149.7784 
– Class WA (Distributing) 31/08/2023 $188,620,906 $1.00 

 Total $2,799,744,315  
– Class D 31/08/2022 $2,146,923,387 $1.00 
– Class S 31/08/2022 $51,072 $1.00 
– Class C 31/08/2022 $1,074 $143.3017 
– Class WA (Distributing) 31/08/2022 $202,612,644 $1.00 
 Total $2,349,588,177  
– Class D 31/08/2021 $1,735,815,536 $1.00 
– Class S 31/08/2021 $51,070 $1.00 
– Class C 31/08/2021 $1,068 $142.5581 
– Class WA (Distributing) 31/08/2021 $330,313,499 $1.00 

 Total $2,066,181,173  

14. Risk Exposure and Risk Management 

The Company has appointed Western Asset Management Company, LLC as Investment Manager to the Fund and Western Asset Management Company, LLC has 
appointed Western Asset Management Company Limited as Sub-Investment Manager. 

The Investment Manager has remained responsible to the Fund for the performance of its agreed upon obligations. The Investment Manager’s responsibility has 
been to manage the assets of the Fund in accordance with the Fund’s stated investment objectives, investment policies and restrictions. Day-to-day investment 
and risk management of the financial instruments (including financial derivative instruments) held by Western Asset US Dollar Liquidity Fund is the responsibility 
of the Investment Manager. 

The Investment Manager and the Sub-Investment Manager use a team based approach to managing the assets of the Fund. This structure ensures that the Fund 
benefits from a consensus that draws on the expertise of all team members. The team interacts on a daily basis to evaluate developments in the market and the 
economy, and meets formally at least every two weeks to review the economic outlook and their investment strategy. 

As part of this team based approach, there is a dedicated risk management team that assesses risk management. This team combines the best of the Investment 
Manager’s and Sub-Investment Manager’s technology and experience to develop useful risk management tools and procedures. 

The Company, in conjunction with the Investment Manager, has determined that its material risks are market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. In respect of the 
use of financial derivative instruments, the risks are counterparty risk, credit risk, increased margin calls and unlimited risk of loss. Further details of these and 
other risks are set out below and in the prospectus. 

Market risk includes market price risk, foreign currency risk and interest rate risk. 

Market price risk arises from the uncertainty about future price movements on financial instruments held. It represents the potential loss a Fund might suffer 
through holding market positions in the face of price movements. The maximum price risk resulting from the ownership of financial instruments is determined by 
the fair value of financial instruments. The Investment Manager and the Sub-Investment Manager may consider the asset allocation of the portfolios in order to 
minimise the risk associated with particular sectors or securities while continuing to follow the Fund’s investment objectives as outlined in Note 2 to these 
financial statements. Risk is managed by the Investment Manager and the Sub-Investment Manager through careful selection of securities within specified limits 
and investment mandates. 

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in the rate of exchange between the currency in which 
the financial asset or financial liability is denominated and the functional currency of the Fund. The value of the investments of the Fund denominated in a 
currency other than the functional currency may rise and fall due to exchange rate fluctuations by the relevant currencies. There is a risk that large exchange rate 
fluctuations may have a significant impact on the performance of the Fund. 

Where the Fund holds investments in a currency other than that of the Fund’s functional currency, the Investment Manager and the Sub-Investment Manager may 
manage foreign currency risk by hedging foreign currency back to the functional currency of the Fund. As at the current and prior financial years, the Fund did not 
hold foreign currency. 

Interest rate risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. Holdings in fixed interest rate debt 
securities are exposed to interest rate risk where the value of these securities or loans may fluctuate as a result of a change in interest rates. Holdings in floating 
and variable rate securities may also be subject to interest rate risk although to a lesser degree. Cash assets held yield interest income, the level of which will 
fluctuate according to the prevailing level of market interest rates. 

The Fund invests in interest bearing financial assets which expose them to risks associated with the effects of fluctuations in the prevailing levels of market 
interest rates on their financial positions and cash flows. The value of investments in fixed rate interest bearing securities may be subject to price volatility due to 
changes in market interest rates. Fluctuations in market interest rates will impact upon the level of interest received by a Fund. 
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14. Risk Exposure and Risk Management – (continued) 

An increase in interest rates will generally reduce the value of debt securities that are issued and outstanding, while a decline in interest rates will generally 
increase the value of debt securities that are issued and outstanding. The magnitude of these price fluctuations will be greater when the maturity of the 
outstanding securities is longer. 

The Investment Manager and the Sub-Investment Manager monitor the interest-rate environment and evaluate risks. Interest rate risk is assessed by monitoring 
maturities and duration relative to benchmarks. Duration is constrained to a predetermined target around the benchmark, to ensure that the interest rate position 
of a portfolio is never so substantial that it overwhelms other strategies. Sectors and individual securities are also assessed in terms of their duration contribution 
to the portfolio. 

Details of the Fund’s weighted average yield and weighted average years to maturity on its fixed rate instruments are set out in Note 14.1(c) below. 

The risks involved with investing include changing economic conditions, industry and company conditions and security selection in addition to interest rate risk, 
credit risk, maturity risk and market risk. The Fund does not have any financial liabilities other than amounts due to short-term creditors. 

14.1 Market Risk 

Due to the nature of money market funds, volatility based risk measures such as Value at Risk (“VaR”) or relative VaR, may not correctly capture the underlying 
risks of a Fund’s portfolio. Accordingly, in line with industry best practice, the Investment Manager used scenario based stress tests for the Fund, which the 
Investment Manager believes better portrays the risk characteristics of the Fund. The Commitment Approach has been used to calculate the global exposure. 

Stress testing is the examination of the potential effects on a fund’s financial condition of a set of specific changes in risk factors, relating to exceptional but 
possible events. The Investment Manager takes a conservative approach by applying stress tests that are beyond the range of reasonably likely occurrences. 

The Investment Manager expects (although there is no assurance) that if the Fund is able to withstand stress tests that are beyond the range of reasonably likely 
occurrences, that the Net Asset Value per share (or any particular class of share) of the Fund, would remain stable in the event of reasonable negative market 
events. 

A scenario based stress test can be used to meet the sensitivity analysis requirement of FRS 102. FRS 102 does not prescribe a specific basis point movement or 
percentage movement for sensitivity analyses. Accordingly for the purposes of this annual report, the currency impact on Western Asset US Dollar Liquidity Fund 
of an instantaneous 25 basis points increase/(decrease) in short-term interest rates is shown below: 

 

Western 
Asset US Dollar 

Liquidity Fund 
–/+ 25 bps 

As at 31 August 2023 –/+$562,383 
As at 31 August 2022 –/+$235,383 

(a) Market Price Risk 

The risk to the Fund from market price risk has been incorporated into the scenario based stress test (Note 14.1 above), therefore, a separate sensitivity analysis 
for market price risk is not presented. 

(b) Foreign Currency Risk 

The Net Asset Value per share of the Fund is calculated in US Dollars. The investments held by the Fund may be acquired, valued and disposed of in other currencies. 

As mentioned above as at the current and prior financial year ends, the Fund did not hold foreign currency, therefore foreign currency risk analysis is not presented. 

(c) Interest Rate Risk 

As at the current and prior financial year ends, all of the cash held by the Fund is held with the Depositary and have the potential to yield interest income, the 
level of which will fluctuate according to the prevailing level of market interest rates. 

The risk to the Fund from interest rate risk has been incorporated into the scenario based stress test (Note 14.1 above), therefore, a separate sensitivity analysis 
for interest rate risk is not presented. 

The split of fixed interest securities and variable interest securities as at 31 August 2023 is as follows: 

Fund  
Investments in Fixed 

Interest Securities 
Investments in Variable 

Interest Securities 
Investments in Non-Interest 

Bearing Securities 

Western Asset US Dollar Liquidity Fund $ 2,242,462,987 560,314,274 – 
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14.1 Market Risk – (continued) 

(c) Interest Rate Risk – (continued) 

The split of fixed interest securities and variable interest securities as at 31 August 2022 is as follows: 

Fund  
Investments in Fixed 

Interest Securities 
Investments in Variable 

Interest Securities 
Investments in Non-Interest 

Bearing Securities 

Western Asset US Dollar Liquidity Fund $ 1,752,047,754 660,195,405 – 

The weighted average yield and weighted average years to maturity of Western Asset US Dollar Liquidity Fund on its fixed rate instruments as at 31 August 2023 
are as follows: 

Currency 
Weighted Average 

Yield 
Weighted Average 

Years to Maturity 

Western Asset US Dollar Liquidity Fund   
US Dollar 5.38% 0.11 

The weighted average yield and weighted average years to maturity of Western Asset US Dollar Liquidity Fund on its fixed rate instruments as at 31 August 2022 
are as follows: 

Currency 
Weighted Average 

Yield 
Weighted Average 

Years to Maturity 

Western Asset US Dollar Liquidity Fund   

US Dollar 2.43% 0.10 

The Fund invested in short term securities and the maturity profile is set out in the table below: 

As at 31 August 2023  Fixed Rate Securities   

Western Asset US Dollar Liquidity Fund Variable 
Interest 

Less than 
1 month 

1 – 3 months 3 months – 
1 year 

1 year – 
No Stated maturity 

Non-Interest 
Bearing 

Total 

 $ $ $ $ $ $ $ 

Assets        
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 560,314,274 1,564,353,820 347,452,364 330,656,803 – – 2,802,777,261 
Other receivables and assets 750 – – – – 9,164,183 9,164,933 
Total Assets 560,315,024 1,564,353,820 347,452,364 330,656,803 – 9,164,183 2,811,942,194 

Liabilities        
Accrued expenses and other liabilities – – – – – 12,197,879 12,197,879 
Total Liabilities – – – – – 12,197,879 12,197,879 
Total interest sensitivity gap 560,315,024 1,564,353,820 347,452,364 330,656,803 – (3,033,696) 2,799,744,315 

As at 31 August 2022  Fixed Rate Securities   

Western Asset US Dollar Liquidity Fund Variable 
Interest 

Less than 
1 month 

1 – 3 months 3 months – 
1 year 

1 year – 
No Stated maturity 

Non-Interest 
Bearing 

Total 

 $ $ $ $ $ $ $ 

Assets        
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 660,195,405 1,573,126,925 84,202,735 94,718,094 – – 2,412,243,159 
Other receivables and assets 8,184 – – – – 1,627,445 1,635,629 
Total Assets 660,203,589 1,573,126,925 84,202,735 94,718,094 – 1,627,445 2,413,878,788 

Liabilities        
Accrued expenses and other liabilities – – – – – 64,290,611 64,290,611 
Total Liabilities – – – – – 64,290,611 64,290,611 
Total interest sensitivity gap 660,203,589 1,573,126,925 84,202,735 94,718,094 – (62,663,166) 2,349,588,177 
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14. Risk Exposure and Risk Management – (continued) 

14.1 Market Risk – (continued) 

(d) Other Price Risk – Fair Value of Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities 

It is anticipated that 100% of the assets of the Fund may be comprised of long positions achieved through direct investments. The Fund does not currently intend 
to take long or short investment positions through the use of derivatives. There were no open derivative positions held during the financial years ended 31 August 
2023 or 31 August 2022 on the Fund. 

By way of derogation, the assets of the Fund that is an LVNAV MMF (a low volatility net asset value money market fund) that have a residual maturity of up to 
75 days may be valued using the amortised cost method. The amortised cost method may only be used in circumstances where the price of that asset calculated 
using the amortised cost method does not deviate by more than 0.10% from its valuation using the mark-to-market method or the mark-to-model method. In the 
event of such a deviation, the price of that asset will instead be valued using either the mark-to-market method or the mark-to-model method. Mark-to-market 
means the valuation of positions at readily available close out prices that are sourced independently, including exchange prices, screen prices, or quotes from 
several independent reputable brokers as defined in the MMF Regulation. Where the use of the mark-to-market model is not possible or the market data is not of 
sufficient quality, an asset of the Fund shall be valued conservatively by using the mark-to-model method. Mark-to-model means any valuation which is 
benchmarked, extrapolated or otherwise calculated from one or more market input as defined in the MMF Regulation. 

The amortised cost method is currently being used in valuing all of the assets of the Fund, which have a residual maturity of up to 75 days, unless the price of that asset 
calculated using the amortised cost method deviates by more than 0.10% from its valuation using the mark-to-market method or the mark-to-model method. For those, 
which have a residual maturity exceeding 75 days, the mark-to-market method or the mark-to-model method are used. Whilst this amortised cost method provides 
certainty in valuation, it may result in periods during which the value of the security, as determined by the amortised cost method of valuation, is higher or lower than the 
price the Fund would receive if the security was sold. During such periods, the daily fluctuation in value of the shares in the Fund may differ somewhat from an identical 
computation made by an investment company with identical investments utilising available indications as to market value in order to value its portfolio securities. 

Franklin Templeton Global Valuation Committee (the “Valuation Committee”) provides guidance to the Board of Directors on valuation matters related to the Fund. In 
addition to the Committee, Franklin Templeton has established the Valuation Committee to oversee the implementation of the valuation policies and procedures adopted 
by the Board of Directors (the “Board”). The Valuation Committee, including the Chairperson, is comprised of no fewer than four members and no more than ten members. 
Representatives of Franklin Templeton Legal and Compliance will serve the Valuation Committee in an advisory capacity. The Valuation Committee meets on a monthly 
basis to review all securities which are manually priced, broker priced, matrix priced, fair valued, illiquid or stale. A Valuation Committee meeting, however, may be called 
at any time to consider any question or issue that falls under their procedures. Valuation Committee meetings can be in person, or via email or other writing. 

When determining the fair value of a security, the Valuation Committee may consider all relevant methods, including but not limited to any one or all of the 
following pricing methods: 

1. A multiple of earnings; 

2. A discount from market of a similar freely traded security; 

3. A discounted cash-flow analysis; 

4. The book value or a multiple thereof; 

5. A risk premium/yield analysis; 

6. Yield to maturity; or 

7. Fundamental investment analysis. 

When determining the fair value of a security, the Valuation Committee should consider factors that may indicate the price that a Fund might reasonably expect to 
receive from the security’s current sale including but not limited to the type of security, the purchase price of the security, the issuer’s financial statements, the 
price and extent of public trading in similar securities of the issuer or comparable companies, values of indices or baskets of securities traded on other markets, 
exchanges or among dealers such as ADR and closed-end fund trading, changes in interest rates, the value of foreign securities traded on other foreign markets, 
foreign currency exchange activity and any letters of credit in place for the benefit of the Fund. 

The Valuation Committee reviews the appropriateness and accuracy of the methods used in fair valuing securities on a monthly basis including a comparison of 
fair values against the last market price and the next available market price, such as the next-day opening price. 

In the event a price is not available from an independent third party, the Administrator or the Investment Manager may obtain one or more indicative quotes from 
approved broker-dealers. Certain investments are priced using an independent third party valuation model and the prices provided are based on a valuation model 
rather than quotes provided by broker-dealers. The valuation model uses a variety of relevant inputs and assumptions depending on the security type and 
available market information. 

As at 31 August 2023 or 31 August 2022, no securities were priced using single broker sources or fair valued by the Valuation Committee. 

Fair Value Estimation 

The Company has classified fair value measurements using a fair value hierarchy that reflects the significance of the inputs used in making the measurements. 
The fair value hierarchy has the following levels: 

Level 1: The unadjusted quoted price in an active market for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access at the measurement date. 
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14.1 Market Risk – (continued) 

(d) Other Price Risk – Fair Value of Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities – (continued) 

Fair Value Estimation – (continued) 

Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable (i.e. developed using market data) for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly. 

Level 3: Inputs are unobservable (ie for which market data is unavailable) for the asset or liability. 

An investment is always categorised as level 1, 2 or 3 in its entirety. In certain cases, the fair value measurement for an investment may use a number of different 
inputs that fall into different levels of the fair value hierarchy. In such cases, an investment’s level within the fair value hierarchy is based on the lowest level of 
input that is significant to the fair value measurement. The assessment of the significance of a particular input to the fair value measurement requires judgment 
and is specific to the investment. 

The inputs or methodology used for valuing securities are not necessarily an indication of the risk associated with investing in these securities. 

All financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are classified as level 2 as at 31 August 2023 and 31 August 2022. 

14.2 Credit Risk 

Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty to or issuer of a financial instrument will fail to discharge an obligation or commitment that it has entered into with the 
Fund. The Company will be exposed to credit risk on parties with whom it trades and will also bear the risk of settlement default. The Investment Manager and 
the Sub-Investment Manager minimise concentrations of credit risk by undertaking transactions with a large number of brokers and counterparties on recognised 
and reputable exchanges. All transactions in listed securities are settled/paid for upon delivery using approved brokers. The risk of default is considered minimal, 
as delivery of securities sold is only made once the broker has received payment. Payment is made on a purchase once the securities have been received by the 
broker. The trade will fail if either party fails to meet its obligation. 

Credit risk is addressed through diversified use of counterparties and issuers, and through minimum security ratings and average portfolio ratings. The Investment 
Manager and the Sub-Investment Manager may set portfolio limits and may invest with mutually agreed limits set at a Fund’s inception, including issue and 
issuer limitations, credit minimums, and an average credit quality and the account is monitored on an ongoing basis to ensure it continues to meet these limits. 
Rigorous independent analysis of all credit securities before purchase, including financial modeling, scenario analysis, and monitoring changes in risk profile may 
also be performed. Generally no more than 5% of the portfolio may be invested in any single corporate issuer at the time of purchase. 

Credit risk can be managed by entering into a credit support agreement (“CSA”) in order to provide stability to a Fund and its investors and to enable a Fund to 
preserve its AAA rating. A CSA is an agreement that provides for cash infusions into a Fund by a support provider to cover the value of holdings in the Fund that 
are currently in default. The support provider does not receive any consideration from the Fund in the form of shares or any other form. There were no CSA’s in 
place during the financial years ended 31 August 2023 or 31 August 2022. 

The Investment Manager and the Sub-Investment Manager review the Fund’s holdings against minimum allowable credit ratings (as applicable). The Valuation 
Committee meets at least monthly and whenever the circumstances so require reviewing and deliberating on valuation concerns including credit. In addition, if 
holdings fall below minimum allowable credit ratings this would be reported to the Board as part of the monthly reporting. 

Substantially all of the cash and securities held by the Fund are held via the Depositary. Bankruptcy or insolvency by the Depositary may cause the Fund’s rights 
with respect to the cash and securities held by the Depositary to be delayed or limited. The Depositary’s long-term deposit rating by S&P’s is AA- (31 August 
2022: AA-). If the credit quality or financial position of the Depositary deteriorates significantly the Investment Manager and the Sub-Investment Manager will 
move the cash and security holdings to another bank. This would require the determination of an appropriate course of action, including negotiation of a contract 
with another bank as well as, the setup of accounts. 

As at 31 August 2023 and 31 August 2022, cash and other receivables were exposed to credit risk. The total amount of financial assets exposed to credit risk 
approximates to their carrying value in the Statement of Financial Position. 

The table below sets out a summary of the credit exposure as at 31 August 2023 or 31 August 2022 based on Standard & Poor’s (“S&P”) credit ratings of the debt 
securities held in the Fund: 

 
Western Asset US Dollar 

Liquidity Fund 

Rating 31 August 2023 31 August 2022 
A-1+ 31.20% 32.77% 
A-1 67.03% 67.23% 
A-2 1.77% –% 
 100.00% 100.00% 
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Notes to Financial Statements – (continued) 

14. Risk Exposure and Risk Management – (continued) 

14.3 Liquidity Risk 

The Company’s prospectus provides for the daily creation and cancellation of shares and the Company is therefore exposed to the liquidity risk of meeting 
shareholder redemptions at any time. 

The Administrator monitors subscription and redemption volumes on a daily basis and notifies the Investment Manager and the Sub-Investment Manager of 
significant movements and unusual trends as appropriate. The Company can limit redemptions, if redemption requests on any dealing day (as defined in the 
prospectus) exceed 10% of the shares in issue in respect of any Fund. The Company may defer the excess redemption requests to subsequent dealing days and 
shall redeem such shares ratably. 

The Company has the ability to borrow in the short term to ensure settlement. In accordance with the Regulations, the Fund may not borrow money except as 
follows: 

(a) the Fund may acquire foreign currency by means of a “back-to-back” loan; and 

(b) the Fund may borrow up to 10% of its Net Asset Value provided that such borrowing is on a temporary basis and not for leverage. 

No such borrowings have arisen during the current and prior financial years. 

One of the responsibilities of the Valuation Committee is to review and deliberate on valuation concerns, including illiquid securities. At least monthly, the 
Investment Manager and the Sub-Investment Manager report to the Valuation Committee whether any holding of the Fund is illiquid. The Investment Manager 
and the Sub-Investment Manager determine on an on-going basis whether any security is illiquid based on whether or not the security may be sold or disposed of 
within seven days at approximately the current market value. In the event a security is determined to be illiquid, the Investment Manager and the Sub-Investment 
Manager immediately notify the Administrator in order to ensure that the security is properly classified by the Fund. There have been no illiquid securities held by 
the Fund as at 31 August 2023 or 31 August 2022. 

The Company may from time to time invest in derivative contracts traded OTC, which are not traded in an organised public market and may be illiquid. As a result, 
the Company may not be able to liquidate quickly its investments in these instruments at an amount close to their fair value in order to meet its liquidity 
requirements or to respond to specific events such as deterioration in the creditworthiness of any particular issuer. There have been no OTC derivative contracts 
held by the Fund as at 31 August 2023 or 31 August 2022. 

The cash outflows below are presented as undiscounted gross amounts if the amounts will settle on a gross basis and undiscounted net amounts if the amounts 
will settle on a net basis. 

Details of residual contractual maturities of financial liabilities for the Fund are outlined below: 

 31 August 2023 31 August 2022 
 $ $ 
Liabilities   

Less than 1 month   
Dividend Distributions Payable to Holders 
of Redeemable Participating Shares 

11,787,878 4,004,411 

Payable for Investments Purchased – 59,941,916 
Investment Manager’s Fee Payable 105,137 – 
Administration, Transfer Agent Services 
and Depositary Fees Payable 

60,340 61,315 

Distribution Fee Payable 100,658 78,622 
Accrued Expenses 31,191 16,340 
Redeemable Participating Shares 2,799,744,315 2,349,588,177 

3 months – 1 year   
Accrued Expenses 112,675 188,007 
Total Financial Liabilities 2,811,942,194 2,413,878,788 

15. Efficient Portfolio Management 

Subject to the conditions and within the limits from time to time laid down by the Central Bank, and except as otherwise stated in the investment objective and 
policies of the Fund, for efficient portfolio management purposes only and in accordance with the terms of the prospectus, the Fund may utilise repurchase 
agreements and reverse repurchase agreements with counterparties approved by the Investment Manager, futures, swaps and options. 

For UCITS which have engaged in efficient portfolio management techniques, disclosures are required under the Central Bank UCITS Regulations. A UCITS is 
required to disclose the revenues arising from repurchase agreements and reverse repurchase agreements and stock lending transactions for the entire reporting 
year together with the direct and indirect operational costs and fees incurred. 
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15. Efficient Portfolio Management – (continued) 

During the current financial year, reverse repurchase agreements were entered into for the purpose of efficient portfolio management. 

Please refer to the table below, which shows the revenue earned from reverse repurchase agreements during the financial years ended 31 August 2023 and 
31 August 2022: 

 31 August 2023 31 August 2022 

Western Asset US Dollar Liquidity Fund $158,230 $31,958 

There have been no transaction costs on the purchases and sales of reverse repurchase agreements. 

There were no stock lending transactions on the Fund for the financial years ended 31 August 2023 and 31 August 2022. 

16. Significant Events 

From 3 October 2022, Joseph Carrier ceased full time employment with Franklin Templeton Investments. Mr. Carrier shall continue to act as a non-executive 
Director of the Company and shall from 3 October 2022 be remunerated in line with the other non-executive Directors of the Company. 

On 12 May 2023, a Supplement for Western Asset US Dollar Liquidity Fund and an updated Prospectus for Western Asset Liquidity Funds plc were issued by the 
Company and noted by the Central Bank. The most significant change was an addition of the following language to the investment restrictions: 

• The Fund may not invest more than 10% of its Net Asset Value in units or shares of other collective investment schemes within the meaning of 
Regulation 68(1)(e) of the UCITS Regulations. 

Effective 17 July 2023, William Jackson resigned as Director of the Company. 

Effective 27 July 2023, Craig Tyle was appointed as Director to the Board of Directors of the Company. 

There have been no other material significant events impacting the financial statements of the Company for the financial year ended 31 August 2023. 

17. Subsequent Events 

Effective 1 November 2023, Elinor Murray was appointed as Director to the Board of Directors of the Company. 

There have been no other material subsequent events since the year end impacting the financial statements of the Company for the financial year ended 
31 August 2023. 

18. Securities Financing Transactions Regulation 

As at 31 August 2023, the Company did not hold any instruments requiring disclosure under the Securities Financing Transactions Regulation. 

19. Approval of the Financial Statements 

The Board approved the financial statements on 7 December 2023. 
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Statements of Portfolio Changes for the year ended 31 August 2023 (unaudited) 

In accordance with the UCITS Regulations, a statement of largest changes in the composition of the Portfolio of Investments during the reporting year is provided 
to ensure that shareholders can identify changes in the investments held by the Fund. These statements present the aggregate purchases and sales of 
transferable securities (including maturities but excluding financial derivative instruments and deposits with credit institutions), exceeding 1.00% of the total 
value of purchases and sales for the year. At a minimum the largest 20 purchases and 20 sales are listed. If a Fund entered into less than twenty purchases or 
sales during the reporting year, then all transactions are present. 

WESTERN ASSET US DOLLAR LIQUIDITY FUND 

MAJOR PURCHASES 
COST 

(in 000’s) $  MAJOR SALES 
PROCEEDS 
(in 000’s) $ 

Automatic Data Processing, 0.000%, due 23/08/2023 124,967  Automatic Data Processing, 0.000%, due 23/08/2023 125,000 

Automatic Data Processing, 0.000%, due 02/08/2023 119,979  Automatic Data Processing, 0.000%, due 02/08/2023 120,000 

Automatic Data Processing, 0.000%, due 08/02/2023 114,979  Automatic Data Processing, 0.000%, due 08/02/2023 115,000 

Automatic Data Processing, 0.000%, due 07/09/2023 104,974  Automatic Data Processing, 0.000%, due 07/09/2023 105,000 

Automatic Data Processing, 0.000%, due 27/07/2023 103,331  Automatic Data Processing, 0.000%, due 27/07/2023 103,345 

Automatic Data Processing, 0.000%, due 22/09/2023 99,994  Automatic Data Processing, 0.000%, due 22/03/2023 100,000 

Automatic Data Processing, 0.000%, due 14/09/2023 99,993  Automatic Data Processing, 0.000%, due 04/04/2023 100,000 

Automatic Data Processing, 0.000%, due 03/11/2023 99,992  Automatic Data Processing, 0.000%, due 26/04/2023 100,000 

Automatic Data Processing, 0.000%, due 16/11/2023 99,989  Automatic Data Processing, 0.000%, due 22/05/2023 100,000 

Automatic Data Processing, 0.000%, due 18/01/2023 99,988  Automatic Data Processing, 0.000%, due 23/05/2023 100,000 

Automatic Data Processing, 0.000%, due 14/02/2023 99,987  Automatic Data Processing, 0.000%, due 12/07/2023 100,000 

Automatic Data Processing, 0.000%, due 04/04/2023 99,987  Automatic Data Processing, 0.000%, due 22/08/2023 100,000 

Automatic Data Processing, 0.000%, due 26/04/2023 99,987  Automatic Data Processing, 0.000%, due 29/08/2023 100,000 

Automatic Data Processing, 0.000%, due 28/09/2023 99,987  Automatic Data Processing, 0.000%, due 26/09/2023 100,000 

Automatic Data Processing, 0.000%, due 02/11/2023 99,987  Automatic Data Processing, 0.000%, due 28/09/2023 100,000 

Automatic Data Processing, 0.000%, due 23/05/2023 99,986  Automatic Data Processing, 0.000%, due 02/11/2023 100,000 

Automatic Data Processing, 0.000%, due 24/05/2023 99,986  Automatic Data Processing, 0.000%, due 03/11/2023 100,000 

Automatic Data Processing, 0.000%, due 20/07/2023 99,986  Automatic Data Processing, 0.000%, due 09/11/2023 100,000 

Automatic Data Processing, 0.000%, due 03/08/2023 99,985  Automatic Data Processing, 0.000%, due 16/11/2023 100,000 

Automatic Data Processing, 0.000%, due 30/08/2023 99,985  Automatic Data Processing, 0.000%, due 29/11/2023 100,000 

Not covered by the Independent Auditors’ Report 
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UCITS V Remuneration Policy (unaudited) 

Remuneration 

Franklin Templeton International Services S.à r.l. (“FTIS”), as UCITS licensed management company (the “Management Company”) has a remuneration policy (the 
“Policy”) in place which applies to all UCITS funds (each a “UCITS” and together the “UCITS”) under its management. The Policy has been designed to discourage 
excessive risk taking, integrating in its performance management systems risk criteria specific to the business units it covers. The policy has a governance 
structure aimed at preventing internal conflicts of interest. 

There are defined procedures in place for the creation, update, review and approval of the Policy as well as for communication and implementation of the Policy. 
Senior Management, Human Resources, Compliance and other functions are all involved in this process and the Policy is approved by Senior Management and the 
Board of Directors of the Management Company. 

Fixed remuneration is defined as base salary plus other benefits which may include pension contributions, life assurance premiums or private medical insurance 
premiums. Levels of fixed remuneration are set with reference to job complexity, level of responsibility, performance and market benchmarking data. These levels 
are reviewed on a regular basis. 

Variable remuneration is defined as annual bonuses, long term awards in the form of performance share grants or sales bonus payments. Levels of variable 
remuneration are set with reference to overall corporate and business unit performance as well as individual performance. 

The full Policy is available at the registered office of the Management Company. Quantitative information relevant to the Fund is outlined below: 

Total amount of fixed remuneration paid by FTIS and its delegates during the year ended 
30 September 2022*,**,*** €903,750 

Total amount of variable remuneration paid by FTIS and its delegates during the year ended 
30 September 2022*,**,*** €606,816 

Number of staff of FTIS and in its delegates as at 30 September 2022 549 

Total amount of compensation paid by FTIS and its delegates to Senior managers during the year 
ended 30 September 2022*,**,*** €458,889 

Total amount paid by FTIS and its delegates to other members of staff who have a material impact 
on the profile of UCITS during year ended 30 September 2022*,**,*** €95,583 

*  The total amount of compensation paid by FTIS has been allocated to each UCITS based on their pro rata share of the average month end total net assets of FTIS for the year 
ended 30 September 2022. 

**  The total amount of compensation paid by the FTIS delegates has been allocated to each UCITS based on their pro rata share of the average month end total net assets of the 
FTIS delegates for the year ended 30 September 2022. 

*** Delegates are Investment Management entities which are subject to regulatory requirements that are equally as effective as those under Article 69(3)(a) of the UCITS Directive. 
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